
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Councillor Pamela Wallace (Chair) 

Councillor John Abbott (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Irene Bramwell 

Councillor Eddie Dourley 

Councillor Mike Fry 

Councillor Valerie Hill 

Councillor Colin Hughes 

Councillor Kath Loftus 

Councillor Angela McInerney 

Councillor Gareth Stockton 

Councillor Angela Teeling 

 
 

Please contact Kim.Butler on 0151 5117496  or e-mail 
kim.butler@halton.gov.uk  for further information 

. 
The next meeting of the Committee is to be confirmed. 

Regulatory Committee 
 
Wednesday, 12 March 2025 6.30 p.m. 
Town Hall, Runcorn 

Public Document Pack



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH 
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

Part l 
 
 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

1 - 2 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest 
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later 
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary interests, to 
leave the meeting during any discussion or voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. INSTITUTE OF LICENSING - SUITABILITY GUIDANCE 
 

3 - 53 

4. TAXI LICENSING MATTER 
 

54 - 90 

 
 
 
 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
At a meeting of the Regulatory Committee on Wednesday, 27 November 2024 in the 
The Board Room - Municipal Building, Widnes 
 
 

 
Present: Councillors Wallace (Chair), Abbott (Vice-Chair), Bramwell, Fry, V. Hill, 
Hughes, K. Loftus, A. McInerney and Stockton  
 
Apologies for Absence: None 
 
Absence declared on Council business:  None 
 
Officers present:  K. Hesketh, W. Pringle and A. Strickland 
 
Also in attendance:  None 
 

 

 
 
 Action 

REG9 MINUTES  
  
  The Minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2024 

having been circulated were signed as a correct record. 
 

   
REG10 TAXI ENFORCEMENT POLICY  
  
 The Committee considered a report to provide 

delegated powers to the City of Wolverhampton Council 
from Halton Borough Council, under Section 101 of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

 
A report was presented to the Regulatory Committee 

on the 9 October 2024, accepting the formal arrangement 
between the City of Wolverhampton and Halton Borough 
Council. 

 
Providing the City of Wolverhampton Enforcement 

Team the same powers, encourages partnership working 
with other Authorities, and provides a strengthened 
enforcement function generally, which should be of benefit 
to the people of Halton. 

 
A letter of authorisation for each of the named officers 

 

ITEMS DEALT WITH  
UNDER DUTIES  

EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE 
 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



at Wolverhampton City Council would be provided, and this 
could be shown to the licensees.  Copies of the licence 
conditions and relevant policies would be exchanged, as 
well as information on reporting enforcement action.  This 
would allow officers at Wolverhampton City Council, to 
enforce licensing requirements for vehicles carrying a plate 
licensed with Halton Borough. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee approved the 

proposed formal arrangements between Halton Borough 
Council and the City of Wolverhampton Council, in relation 
to officer authorisation concerning Taxi and Private Hire 
licensing functions and resolved to  delegate powers  to the 
City of Wolverhampton Council under Section 101 Local 
Government Act 1972 accordingly. 

   
 
 
 
 

Meeting ended at 6.45 p.m. 

Page 2



REPORT: Regulatory Committee 
 
DATE: 12th March 2025 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Director – Legal and Democratic Services   
 
PORTFOLIO: Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Institute of Licensing – Suitability Guidance 
 
WARDS: Borough-wide 
 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1     To inform the Committee of the introduction of the ‘Institute of Licensing -  

    Suitability Guidance’ and to provide rationale for its introduction. 
 

1.2     For Members to note the report. 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION:  That the Committee considers the contents of this 

report, and that the information contained within be noted. 
 

 
3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 In October 2024, the Institute of Licensing published a revised Suitability 

Guidance following extensive consultations, and considering the issues 
from all perspectives including, Councillors, Licensing Officers, Lawyers, 
the Taxi and Private Hire Trades, Academics, the Probation Service, 
NAFN, National and Local Governments, interested Charities and the 
Police. 

 
3.2 The document has been produced by the Institute, working in 

partnership with the Lawyers in Local Government (LLG) and the 
National Association of Licensing and Enforcement Officers (NALEO).  
The Guidance has been endorsed by the National Anti-Fraud Network 
(NAFN). 

 
3.3 The Guidance was, and is, intended to assist local Licensing Authorities 

in considering their own policies on determining the suitability of 
applicants and established drivers in all aspects of Taxi and Private Hire 
licensing, with the aim to achieve greater consistency throughout 
Authorities. 

 
3.4 The Guidance has successfully been cited in courts where it has been 

incorporated by authorities, and as a stand-alone reference. 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



3.5 ‘Chapter 4’ of the document provides licensing authorities and their 
decision makers with guidance on determining suitability, taking into 
account the ‘character’ of the applicant or licensed driver. 

 
3.6 Licensing Authorities are encouraged to adopt this guidance within their 

own Taxi and Private hire policies as a starting or reference point from 
which decisions can be made, taking into account the particular merits 
of each case. 

 
3.7 The Regulatory Committee is only being asked to note this report.  This 

is because the definition of the functions assigned to the Committee are 
restricted to the power to licence (which includes grant, refusal and 
suspension with or without conditions) Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire vehicles, drivers and operators.  This is limited to individual 
applications.  Anything beyond this is deemed to be an executive 
function for the Executive Board to determine – whether or not involving 
a policy change. 

 
3.8 A copy of the Institute of Licensing “Suitability Guidance” is attached to 

this report at Appendix A 
 

 
4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1. There are to be no immediate changes to Policy with the introduction of 

this information item. 
 

4.2. Further consideration will be given at a later date to implementing 
sections of the ‘Institute of Licensing – Suitability Guidance’ into the 
Council’s Professional Standards Policy. 
 

4.3. Should there be any amendments and inclusions to the Council’s 
Professional Standards Policy in the future, recommendations will be 
made to Members of the Regulatory Committee and approval shall be 
sought. 

 
5. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS  
 
5.1 Should changes to the Policy be implemented in the future, any costs 

will be funded from within existing budgets.  There will be no additional 
charges to the licensed trade. 
 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCILS PRIORITIES 
 

6.1 Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting Greater  

Independence 

None 

Page 4



 
6.2 Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy 

None 
 
6.3 Supporting Children, Young People and Families 

None 
 
6.4 Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need 

 None  
 
6.5 Working Towards a Greener Future 

 None  
 
6.6 Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community 

 None  
 

 
7. RISK ANALYSIS 

 
7.1. None 
 

8. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1. There are no equality or diversity issues related to this information item. 

 
 

9. CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1. There are no climate change implications since this information item will 

have no effect on the environment.  
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

None. 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



REPORT: Regulatory Committee 
 
DATE: 12th March 2025 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Director – Legal and Democratic Services   
 
PORTFOLIO: Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Taxi Licensing Matter 
 
WARDS: Borough-wide 
 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1. To update and provide information to members on the outcome of the 
consultation for taxi rank provision within the geographical boundaries of 
Halton, and to seek approval for the suggested amendments to the 
Council’s existing hackney carriage stands (referred to as taxi ranks 
throughout this report) 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION   
 

2.1. That the Committee considers the contents of this report and the 
information detailed in the attached appendices; 

 
2.2 That the proposals detailed in Appendix A (showing proposed 

amendments in red, in respect of Stands 11, 13, 17 and 19) be referred 
to the Executive Board with a recommendation for approval, taking into 
consideration any representations which may be made by the 
Regulatory Committee in respect thereof; 

 
2.3 That the Executive Board authorise the Director, Legal and Democratic 

Services to fulfil all procedural requirements and relating to the proposals 
detailed in Appendix A in accordance with Section 63 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 
 

 
3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The Council’s current taxi rank provision is attached to this report at 

Appendix B 
 
3.2 Details of the proposed amendments to the taxi ranks, alongside the 

Council’s current taxi rank provision, have been provided to Cheshire 

Police (including Local Policing Units in Runcorn and Widnes), to allow 

for comments or objections.  No objections to the amendments have 

been received. 

Page 54 Agenda Item 4



3.3 A consultation exercise has been undertaken which included 
representatives of the Halton Borough Council taxi trade on the provision 
of taxi ranks throughout the borough, and the amendment to said ranks.  
Details of the consultation together with the responses received are 
attached to this report at Appendix C 

 
3.4 A notice was published in the ‘Public Notice Portal’ of Runcorn and 

Widnes Weekly News dated 20th January 2025 and published 23rd 
January 2025, stating that the Council intends to amend the existing 
hackney carriage stands order.  The notice advised that full details of the 
proposed changes could be found at HDL offices in both Runcorn and 
Widnes sites, and an email address was provided to allow objections to 
be received by the Licensing Manager. The same notice was also 
displayed on the Councils Website. No objections were received.  A copy 
of the notice is attached to this report at Appendix D 

 
3.5 The proposed amendments to the Taxi Rank Orders are set out below; 
 

 Runcorn  

Stand 

Number  

Location  Current Times  Amended proposal  

17 High Street (in front 

of Chambers  

22.00 – 06.00 Rescind  

19 High Street (outside 

Bargain Booze and 

Mersey Road  

20.00 – 06.00 Anytime  

 

Widnes  

Stand 

Number  

Location  Current Times  Amended proposal  

11 Albert Road (outside 

Wetherspoons) 

18.00 to 06.00 Anytime  

13 Albert Road (outside 

Imperial) 

18.00 to 06.00 Anytime  

 
 
3.6 Stand 17 has been suspended as a taxi rank since building works 

commenced in May 2024.  During this time, the licensed premises that 
provided the rank with the majority of customers has closed, reducing 
the demand for hackney carriages on High Street (East).  There will 
continue to be a designated rank for 5 vehicles opposite where this one 
is proposed to be rescinded, with operational hours of 22:00 – 06:00. 

Page 55



3.7 The increase in operation times for stands 19, 11 and 13 will improve 
service to customers due to their central and busy locations. 

3.8 Increasing the operation times for stands 19,11 and 13 will not affect the 
parking provision for local businesses.  A loading bay is already 
incorporated into stand 19 on High Street for deliveries, with parking 
bays and car parks for customers available within close proximity of all 
stands. 

4.      JURISDICTION OF THE COMMITTEE  
 
4.1. The Committee is responsible for determining the Council’s policies in 

connection with the grant, variation, suspension or revocation of licences 
relating to taxi and private matters (see Terms of Reference of the 
Regulatory Committee part 17B Council Constitution). 
 

4.2. The Constitution must now be interpreted in accordance with the case of 
R (on the application of 007 Stratford Taxis Limited v Stratford on Avon 
District Council 2011.  This Court of Appeal decision interpreted the 
meaning of the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 2000 in respect of matters which 
must be dealt with by a Council's Executive or by a Committee of its 
Council.  Essentially, the Court held that; (1) It was clear that individual 
applications relating to taxi matters must be dealt with by the equivalent 
of this Council’s Regulatory Committee and (2) matters calculated to 
facilitate, or be conducive or incidental to such applications must also be 
dealt with in the same way but (3) any ‘plan or strategy’ associated with 
such a function would be an executive function and therefore have to be 
determined by a Council’s Executive.  The Stratford case concerned the 
introduction of a wheelchair access policy.  The decision was taken by 
the Council’s Cabinet rather than its Licensing Committee.  The 
challenge from the taxi trade was that the Licensing Committee should 
have adopted the policy.  This element of the challenge was rejected by 
the court. 

 
4.3. Consequently, any decision of the Regulatory Committee on matters 

contained in this agenda will be by the recommendation to the Executive 
Board. 

 
 

5.      POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1. If approved by the Executive Board, the Council’s Taxi Ranks Sealed 

Order will be superseded by a new Taxi Ranks Order, which would be 
sealed and adopted by the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



6.      FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS  
 
6.1 The cost of implementing the recommended changes, by way of 

providing new signage to be displayed at the site of each amended 
hackney carriage rank, must be met through the Taxi Licensing budget. 
 
 

7.      IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCILS PRIORITIES 
 

7.1 Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting Greater  

Independence 

None 
 
7.2 Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy 

None 
 
7.3 Supporting Children, Young People and Families 

None 
 
7.4 Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need 

 None  
 
7.5 Working Towards a Greener Future 

 None  
 
7.6 Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community 

 None  
 

 
8.      RISK ANALYSIS 

 
8.1. None 
 

9.       EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
9.1. There are no equality or diversity issues related to the review. 

 
 

10.    CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
10.1. There are no climate change implications since the decision will have no 

effect on the environment.  
 
 

Page 57



11. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
 Document  Place of Inspection Contact Officer 
 
 Application  Legal Services  Wendy Pringle 
 Documents  
   
 
 
    

Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Institute of Licensing - Suitability Guidance
	Appendix A

	4 Taxi Licensing Matter
	Appendix A report 1
	APPENDIX B
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX D


